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Question and Answer (Q&A) 

CI GEF/GCF Project and Portfolio Management System 

RFP# CI-GEF-CI-GCF-FY22-001 

1. Q: If the bid is open to an international technology consulting company headquartered 
in India? 
A: There are no geographic restrictions for respondents. 
 

2. Q: Is there any domestic or international travel required for vendor team members for 
this project? 
A:   No travel is required for vendor teams.  However, respondents may determine if travel 
is preferred and include it in the proposal request. 
 

3. Q: Why has Conservation International decided to make this investment now?  What is 
driving this project?  
A: The CI-GEF portfolio has grown significantly since accreditation in 2013; shortly after, CI 
was also accredited as a GCF Agency. The institution is seeking to make this investment 
to continue to effectively manage the portfolio and to ensure efficiencies in project and 
portfolio management.  
 

4. Q: Has Conservation International attempted an initiative like this in the past?  If yes, 
please describe what was successful and not successful about those efforts 
A: CI has attempted an initial design of a solution in Microsoft power apps.  It was not 
pursued due to inefficient usability 
 

5. Q: What kinds of prep and/or readiness have the teams undergone in order to be ready 
for this type of engagement? 
A: The team has participated in requirements gathering sessions with an internal business 
analyst to develop the RFP requirements.  Additionally, the project team has participated 
in an initial RFI for solution platforms. 
 

6. Q: What are the goals of this engagement? 
A: Below please find the most important goals for the engagement: 

• Centralized repository of projects by program to allow for visibility and reporting 
on program status and performance 

• Increase efficiency of Agency staff to manage projects within a program to 
increase automation and decrease manual repetitive tasks 

• Improved proposal/report submission and review process with from Executing 
Agencies 

• Improved efficiency of generation of GEF required reports such as the PIR 
• Automated reminders/alerts when projects/deliverables/measurements are 

outside of acceptable standards 
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• Minimization of duplicate data entry between PPM system and 

ConservationGrants 
• Automation of activities based upon templates. 
• Secure document management and approval tracking 

 
7. Q: What challenges is this engagement looking to solve? 

A: Below please find the most immediate challenges we are looking to solve: 
 

• Generating program level reports, on project status and project results 
• Providing a single place to view the status of a project, project phase, specific 

deliverables, etc. 
• Improve efficiency of submission and review of documents from the Executing 

Agencies 
• Eliminating duplicate entry into multiple systems such as ConservationGrants 

Raiser’s Edge and Business World. 
• Minimize the level of effort and increase the efficiency of creating reports to 

Secretariate 
• Eliminate manual, repetitive tasks such as report reminders and creation of PIR 
• Identifying status of required deliverables and reports 

 
8. Q: How many vendors will be participating in the RFP? 

A:  The RFP is open to all vendors who are interested. 
 

9. Q: What expectations do you have in terms of Diversity Equity and Inclusion principles 
re: system design? 
A:  We do not have firm expectations in terms of DEI principles of system design but are 
interested in learning if they are considered by implementation partners when designing 
solutions. 
 

10. Q: Is a fixed bid required? 
A:  Please use the Budget template provided in the RFP. The submitted budget will be the 
basis of evaluation.  
 

11. Q: What is the budget range for this project? 
A:  There is no specified budget range for this project. 
 

12. Q: Have you already communicated with a Salesforce Account Executive about this 
project? 
A:  Our Salesforce Account Executive is aware of the RFP and the project. 
 

13. Q: Do we have your permission to communicate with your Salesforce Account 
Executive regarding this RFP? 
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A: No, to ensure the equitable access of information to all bidders.  
 

14. Q: Please describe your decision-making process for this RFP. 
A:  The proposal will be scored based on the Evaluation Criteria, established in section 7 
of the RFP.  
 

15. Q: Please share more about your timeline for selection, implementation, go-live, etc. 
A:  The timeline for selection is detailed in Section 8, Proposal Timeline of the RFP.  We 
have no specific requirements for implementation timeline and will depend upon the level 
of effort required for the project and availability of both the implementation partner(s) and 
CI staff.  Bidders should include anticipated project timelines in their responses. 
 

16. Q: Are there any hard deadlines for the project?  If so, please elaborate. 
A: There are no hard deadlines for the project implementation. Bidders should include 
anticipated project timelines in their responses. Bidders shall adhere to submission 
requirements of the RFP. Proposals must be received no later than November 1, 2021, at 
11:59PM EDT (UTC-03:59). 
 

17. Q: Are there any systems you will lose access to or will be sunsetting that rely on this 
product? 
A:  No, there are no systems that are being retired as we transition to the planned PPM 
system. 
 

18. Q: Will you plan to conduct a pilot with a subset of agencies and/or programs or 
projects? 
A:  The initial implementation of the PPM solution covered under the RFP includes the 
GEF program (all requirements) and the GCF program (subset of requirements).  We have 
not anticipated piloting to a smaller set of projects at this time but are open to 
recommendations from Implementation Partners in their proposal. 
 

19. Q: To what extent does Salesforce experience impact your decision on selecting a 
vendor? 
A: As described in Section 7 of the RFP, Implementation Partner experience and 
qualifications will count for 25% of the overall proposal score. 
 

20. Q: Will there be an opportunity for a scoping call so we can ask detailed questions? Or 
will all the questions be submitted via email only? 
A: Questions will be submitted via email only. 
 

21. Q: Are you willing to provide examples of workplans, reports, and logframes during the 
RFP process? 
A:  All public reports/documents are available on our websites: 
https://www.conservation.org/gef/projects and https://www.conservation.org/gcf/projects. 

https://www.conservation.org/gef/projects
https://www.conservation.org/gcf/projects
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22. Q: What level of communication should bidders expect during the RFP process (e.g. 
will we be able to discuss the project with CI staff)? 
A:  The level of communication with CI staff will be limited. The Clarifications submitted to 
CI, was the best way of directly asking questions.  

If your firm is selected as one of the finalists for Stage 2: Live Demonstration portion of 
the RFP, your firm will have two interviews consisting of:  

i.A 60-minute interview with a focus on system architecture, application, and data 
security. 

ii.A 120-minute system demonstration focused on how the solution meets the functional 
requirements. 

 
23. Q: How many internal, dedicated change management, communications and training 

resources will be provided for the implementation?  
A:  CI will provide change management and communications resources as needed for the 
implementation.  However, CI does not have dedicated team of change management 
professionals and as such the responsibility will be born by the CI GEF/GCF staff and will 
be a portion of their job responsibilities. 

 
24. Q: Does CI have the ability to extract any data required for the PPM from 

ConservationGrants and/or Sharepoint without vendor support? 

A:  CI has the basic ability to extract data from ConservationGrants and Sharepoint 
without vendor support.  Respondents should indicate what specific support is required in 
order to ensure CI is able to meet this requirement. 

 

25. Q: What type of admin support do you have in place today? What capacity and 
infrastructure is in place for ongoing maintenance and management? 
A:  CI has a team responsible for the current maintenance of ConservationGrants.  We will 
evaluate future staffing and support needs based upon the solution that is decided. 

 
26. Q: Do you have a change management plan/strategy in place today that will support 

this engagement?  If not, should this be included in scope? 

A:  We do not have change management plan or strategy in place for this engagement.  
Vendors should include this activity in their response if they believe it is important to the 
success of the project. 

 

27. Q: Do you have a data governance plan/structure in place today that will support this 
engagement?  If not, should this be included in scope? 
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A:  We do not have a formal data governance plan/structure in place for this engagement.  
The CI GEF/GCF teams have clear roles and delineation of governance over data within 
their system, but there is no formal structure. 

 

28. Q: Has Conservation International participated in agile development projects before?  
If yes, which agile framework have you used in the past?  Which one worked will and 
which one(s) do you not prefer? 

A:  CI IT department has utilized agile development principles in executing their internal 
and external projects.  We prefer agile methodologies that are sprint-based (as opposed 
to Kanban) where we can prioritize user stories and deliver incremental value during the 
project implementation.  Additionally, we place a large focus on defining the sprint cycles, 
sprint stages, project team roles, and testing and acceptance methodology at the 
beginning of the engagement. 

 

29. Q: Who would be involved in this engagement from Conservation International?  What 
are their responsibilities?  Would the selected vendor be expected to own the agile 
management or participate as part of a large agile team? 

A: The selected vendor would be responsible for owning the agile project management 
responsibilities.  We expect the vendor to define the specific needs from the CI side, but 
we anticipate the following potential participants from CI: 

• CI Project Manager: Responsible for coordinating resources on the CI side and 
guiding CI staff through Agile development process 

• Subject Matter Experts:  Individuals from different user groups responsible for 
reviewing user stories, defining acceptance criteria, making design decisions and 
conducting user acceptance testing. 

• Product Owner – Overall CI responsibility for defining priorities, determining scope 
and budget, and ensuring CI resource allocation 

• ConservationGrants Administrators – Responsible for providing input on CG 
configuration and managing any changes to CG as a result of the PPM solution 

• CI Sharepoint Administrator – Responsible for advising on Sharepoint configuration 
and providing technical expertise as required. 

• CI IT Security and Data Privacy – Responsible for ensuring proper IT security and data 
security principles are followed.  

• Contracts Administrator – Responsible for managing the contract(s) with the 
implementation partner and any third-party vendors 

• Project Coordinator – Provides administration and change management support 
activities. 
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30. Q: Will additional 3rd party vendors be involved in this engagement?  What is their 

expected involvement? 
A:  Implementation Partners are expected to coordinate with 3rd party vendors as needed 
to participate in the implementation and should recommend the level of participation 
required in their project proposal. 
 

31. Q: Who will manage the solution once the engagement is complete? 
A:  At this time, no decisions have been made about the management of the solution after 
implementation.  CI will be responsible for the overall management of the solution.  
However, we may consider additional support services by a vendor as needed. 
 

32. Q: Will internal users participate in UAT? 
A:  Yes – Internal users will conduct User Acceptance Testing. 
 

33. Q: Will CI be providing a product owner and a scrum master? 
A:  CI will provide a product owner.  The implementation partner will be expected to 
provide a scrum master. 
 

34. Q: Will CI be providing developers to include in the development team? 
A: CI will not be providing developers to include in the development team for this project.  
CI may provide support from ConservationGrants and SharePoint administrators in the 
areas that impact their respective tools. 
 

35. Q: Do you have an entity-relationship diagram for the current Salesforce instance that 
you can share? 
A:  We do not intend to share the ERD for the current Salesforce instance at this stage in 
the RFP process.  We may consider sharing the ERD with respondents that are invited to 
Phase 2 of the selection process after completing a mutual NDA. 
 

36. Q: What finance tool is your current Salesforce instance integrated with? 
A:  Unit 4 Business World 
 

37. Q: Any plans to change how you are currently using Salesforce?  If so, please describe. 
A:  ConservationGrants is an actively managed platform and therefore is in constant state 
of maintenance and improvements to meet the evolving needs of the users.  We do not 
anticipate any major system enhancements in the next year that would impact the PPM 
system.  However, we do anticipate the eventual migration from FoundationConnect to 
another grants management platform as Salesforce continues to develop the Grants 
Management product and finalize timelines for discontinuing support for 
FoundationConnect. 
 

38. Q: Should integration with the finance tool be included in scope for this project? 
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A:  The preference would be to leverage the existing financial integration through 
ConservationGrants.  However, implementation partners should propose the best overall 
solution based upon their experience and knowledge of the products available. 
 

39. Q: Have you/are you considering Salesforce-based PM tools like Cloud Coach or 
Mission Control? 
A:  We are open to all Salesforce-based applications. 
 

40. Q: Have you/are you considering Salesforce-based impact tools like AmpImpact or 
OAKs? 
A:  We are open to all Salesforce-based applications. 
 

41. Q: Should the technical solution include optimization for mobile access (ie.e phone, 
tablet, etc)? 
A:  We currently have no specific requirements for mobile access, but we would prefer 
that the platform should allow for the implementation in the future. 
 

42. Q: Are you currently using Salesforce Communities? 
A:  ConservationGrants currently utilizes the FoundationConnect Grantee Portal based 
upon Salesforce Communities 
 

43. Q: Do you require Salesforce Shield? 
A:  We are not currently utilizing Salesforce Shield.  The implementation partner may 
recommend platforms based upon requirements. 
 

44. Q: Do you currently have Premier Success and if not, are you open to subscribing? 
A:  We do not currently have Premier Success.  Implementation partners may recommend 
applications and support packages that they deem beneficial to project success. 
 

45. Q: What is the email provider currently in use by CI-GEF/GCF agencies? 
A:  CI uses Microsoft Office 365 for our mail services. 
 

46. Q: Do you currently use Slack and if not, are you open to using Slack? (Noting use of 
Teams) 
A:  While we will not rule out the use of Slack, we have a very strong preference for 
leveraging our existing Microsoft Teams functionality.  It would require a strong business 
case to use Slack instead of Teams.  
 

47. Q: Are you using the Nonprofit Success Pack? 
A:  No, CI is not utilizing the Nonprofit Success Pack. 
 

48. Q: Are you currently using a document generation tool like Conga or Apsona Merge? 
A:  Yes, currently a portion of ConservationGrants users utilize Conga Composer. 
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49. Q: How well is FoundationConnect currently working for you?  Is there a general level 
of satisfaction with FoundationConnect? 
A:  CI has configured FoundationConnect to meet our current business needs.  There is a 
general level of satisfaction with FoundationConnect. 
 

50. Q: What is the CI Financial System? Raiser’s Edge? 
A:  CI’s financial system is Unit 4 Business World.  Raiser’s Edge is used for fundraising. 
 

51. Q: Does Conservation International have an existing Single Sign On (SSO) application 
in place for Salesforce and/or SharePoint?  If so, which one? 
A:  CI utilizes Microsoft Azure authentication, however, ConservationGrants is not 
currently SSO enabled.  
 

52. Q: Is Single Sign On expected? 
A:  Integration with SSO is desired but not a requirement under this RFP. 
 

53. Q: Does Conservation International have a preference for one-org vs a multi-org 
approach? 
A:   Conservation International knows that there are benefits and costs associated with 
going with either approach.  We are looking to the implementation partner to make 
recommendations on an approach.  We will consider license costs, maintenance level of 
effort, and user experience when reviewing the two options.  Additionally, we will 
consider the future costs of migrating the solution to another org when CI eventually 
moves away from FoundationConnect. 
 

54. Q: Does Conservation International currently have more than one Salesforce instance? 
A:  Currently, Conservation International has two Salesforce instances.  
ConservationGrants and a separate instance that manages program data. 
 

55. Q: Will development of training materials (job aids, Captivate simulation videos, PPTs, 
etc.) be created internally or by your partner? 
A:  CI would prefer the development of training materials be done by the partner 
organization with inputs from CI-GEF/GCF 
 

56. Q: Regarding training, is it expected that the vendor will perform all end-user training 
for agencies or is the train-the-trainer model acceptable? 
A:  We anticipate the vendor will perform all end-user training for CI GEF/GCF agencies.  
Train-the-trainer model is preferred for end-user training of agency staff.   
 

57. Q: Are remote training sessions acceptable? 
A:  Yes, remote training sessions are acceptable. 
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58.  Q: We understand that integration with SharePoint is in scope, is SharePoint currently 

set up to manage documents appropriately?  Or is additional effort required to prepare 
for a successful integration? 
A:  While the current SharePoint solution is configured appropriately, we expect that the 
SharePoint setup may require modification with the integration with the PPM system and 
should be considered part of the scope.  CI may be able to provide SharePoint support in 
this effort. 
 

59. Q: Approximately how many documents are in a SharePoint per project? (We 
understand there is a great variance) 
A:  The number of documents per project vary greatly based upon the stage of the size 
and stage of the project.  We can anticipate 500 – 1000 documents depending upon 
number of revisions required of various deliverables. 
 

60. Q: Is the SharePoint sharing model well defined or will consulting be needed regarding 
the security matrix? 
A:  The SharePoint sharing model is well defined in its current state.  We anticipate that 
the sharing model will require update as part of the implementation of the PPM to ensure 
proper sharing and minimizing the maintenance required. 
 

61. Q: How does Conservation International intend to use SharePoint as part of the PPM 
project?  Is it only for document management or possibly using other features such as 
sites, etc.? 
A:  Conservation International intends to use SharePoint for document management for 
the PPM project, specifically to allow non-Salesforce users to access documentation.  CI is 
open to additional features inside the SharePoint solution. 
 

62. Q: How much data are you currently managing in your existing systems that you would 
want to migrate to Salesforce as part of this project? Can you give us an order of 
magnitude? 
A:  The total number of projects by phase is provided in Section 2, Project Overview, 
Size of Portfolio.  In general, we would require the migration of data that would be 
required for either Agency or Entity reporting. 
 

63. Q: Can you please describe the types of data that will be migrated? 
A:  We expect data the following data to be migrated for the GEF portfolio only: 

• Project Listing with key project attributes such as description, executing agency, 
stage, timeline, amounts 

• Grants linked to projects 
• Results Framework targets and latest measurements 
• Active workplans and outstanding deliverables with incomplete tasks, due dates, 

responsible parties 
• Project Budgets and Expenditures 
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• Risks Ratings 
• Safeguard Plans 
• Reporting Schedule and Report Approval Status 
• Links to existing SharePoint directories 

Final determination of migration scope will be made based upon system architecture and 
design. 

64. Q: How would you describe the cleanliness and accuracy of the data? 
A:  The data is currently not in a system and therefore we cannot testify to the cleanliness 
and accuracy of the data. 
 

65. Q: Will the vendor be expected to perform all data cleanup or a subset? 
A:  The vendor is expected to identify data cleanup activities and systematically cleanup 
records to the extent possible.  We understand that the Agencies own the data and will 
be required to do some of the cleanup and to review all of the cleanup automated by the 
vendor. 
 

66. Q: Will CI be able to provide data tables with unique IDs? 
A:  The data is currently not in a database.  CI will be able to populate templates provided 
but without unique IDs. 
 

67. Q: What systems contain legacy data for import besides Word, Excel, and 
Salesforce/FoundationConnect? (Excluding Sharepoint) 
A:  There are no additional systems from which data will be migrated. 
 

68. Q: How many users are/will be using the solution? 
A: Please refer to Section 2, Project Details for user estimates. 
 

69. Q: Please confirm, all requirements listed in Appendix 3 are included in phase 1 and 
should be represented in our proposal and cost estimate. 
A: All requirements for Phase 1 are included in Appendix 3 and need to be in 
proposals/cost estimates. 
 

70. Q: Will Secretariate members need access to the system?  If so, what level of detail do 
they need?  
A: No. GEF and GCF Secretariat staff will not have access to the system.  
 

71. Q: Should the solution solve for expense tracking and if so, at what level(i.e. total 
expense per activity or individual expenses)? 
A: No, the solution should not include individual expense tracking. Only total expense at 
the component level and overall cost category.  
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72. Q: To what extent should the solution accommodate prime/sub funding and 

budgeting?       
A: The Solution will not need to include prime/sub-funding and budgeting. 
  

73. Q: Is there a need to collect data at the beneficiary level and if so, will that data include 
personally identifiable information?                                                                                                          
A: No, there is no need to collect data on the beneficiary level. 
 

74. Q: For input/output/outcome/impact tracking, how many tiers of tracking are required 
(ie. Program, portfolio, project, activity)?                                                                                               

A: We require tracking or reporting of results at the impact level, project level, and 
 program level. Tracking is on activity, project and portfolio levels. 

 
75. Q: How often are measurements conducted for activities?                  

A: Activity measurements are conducted by the Executing Agency and it depends on the 
individual project. CI-GEF requires quarterly and annual monitoring. 
 

76. Q: What functionality is expected for measurement tracking (e.g. actual change, 
percentage change, cumulative totals, increase, decrease, et)?  
A: The method of reporting measurements depends upon the indicator. We often utilize 
percentage change, actual change and cumulative totals.  
 

77. Q: What functionality is expected when measurements indicate a project is not on 
track (ie, is there an expectation of a flag or notifications?                               
A:  A system generated alert, which can include emails or another tool. 
 

78. Q: For mitigation plans, is tracking whether mitigation activities have been completed 
expected?  Are there action notices required?                       
A: Yes, activities would be created with expected timeline for completions. Yes, it is 
expected that notices are sent out if activities are not delivered on time.  
 

79. Q: For Amendments and Change requests, is a formal approval process expected or 
just the ability to not(e) that approved has been received?     

A: Yes, for amendments there is an expectation that the system will allow for the 
documentation of approvals by all required individuals.  We do not have specific 
requirements if a formal Salesforce approval process or a combination of validation rules 
and automation could be used.  

 

80. Q: For deliverable approvals, is a formal approval process expected or the ability to 
note approval has been received?  
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A: There is an expectation that the system will allow for the documentation of approvals 
by all required individuals.  We do not have specific requirements if a formal Salesforce 
approval process or a combination of validation rules and automation could be used. 
  

81. Q: Given the requirement for a grantee portal, is there similar requirement for a portal 
for reviewers and/or Secretariate members?                                  
A: The GEF/GCF Secretariats have their own portals. The CI solution does not need to 
communicate with the GEF/GCF portals. Reviewers from the CI-GEF/GCF agencies will be 
using the CI solution. 
 

82. Q: Can you provide documented workflows for required alerts and automations or is 
this something that will need to be identified in discovery with your partner?  
A:  Workflows will be identified during discovery. Alerts can include: deliverables overdue, 
due dates approaching, approvals, document ready for review etc. 
   

83. Q: Is offline data collection required?  If so, have you considered tools like TaroWorks?          
A: We do not require offline data collection. 
 

84. Q: In terms of UI design, how important is control over branding and “look and feel”?   
A:  The UI should be user-friendly so that the users can intuitively navigate through their 
appropriate tasks in the system.  The “look and feel” is most important for the grantee 
portal, for which we would like the ability to make updates as necessary for branding and 
ease of use.    
 

85. Q: For project and donor approvals – is an online approval process required?  
A:  The PPM system shall allow for the Agencies to record the Secretariat approval of 
project stages.  The PPM system shall allow CI to identify approvals that are required for 
projects to move to the next phase, including notifications and reporting on approvals 
completed and outstanding, and enforce those approval requirements. 
 

86. Q: Approximately how many indicators are used per project?                   
A: This is highly dependent on project design. We can expect a minimum of 30 indicators 
per project.  
 

87. Q: Can you please elaborate on the “snapshot” requirement?  What values or fields are 
required?  
A: We need to see the project data at specific points in time in relation to the project 
cycle. For example, prior to PIF approval, PPG phase, implementation phase, and 
closeout. There are specific data components that are critical, including the results 
framework/logical framework. 
 

88. Q: Are tasks and deliverables connected to activities, project, programs or all of these?  
A:  Yes, please look at the monitoring section or a project document for reference here.  

https://www.conservation.org/gef/projects
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89. Q: What level of activity/task is required for Gantt tracking?  

A:  Tracking needs to be done for each row of the Gantt chart. 
 

90. Q: What does ESFM mean in this context? 
A: Environment Social Management Framework- 
https://www.conservation.org/docs/default-source/gcf/ci_gef_gcf-esmf-version-
7.pdf?sfvrsn=a788de43_4  
 

91. Q: What is the FRA in this context? 
A: This is the Financial Risk Assessment. It is a questionnaire to assess the capacity of an 
organization to manage GEF and GCF funds. 
  

92. Q: Is there a list of strategic reports, metrics and other analytics that are intended to be 
used as part of the PPM solution?                      
A: Strategic reports can be focused in the following areas: 

• GEF/GCF Program Metrics – Total project performance against program metrics 
• Portfolio level reports – Pipeline reports, Approved Projects by Stage, total 

fundraising achieved by fiscal year 
• Program Performance Reports – such as Number/Percentage of Projects with 

Risks, Number/percentage of projects that are delayed or not performing against 
expectations 

• Agency Management Reports – Examples of time elapsed between pre-
implementation phases, time elapsed from submission of reports/proposals to 
approval 

• GEF/GCF Agency Standard Reports, such as Project Implementation Reports. 
• At project level - Total project spent vs. budgeted, and total co-financing 

materialized vs. committed. Costs by components, and cost categories as well as 
percentage used 

https://www.conservation.org/docs/default-source/gcf/ci_gef_gcf-esmf-version-7.pdf?sfvrsn=a788de43_4
https://www.conservation.org/docs/default-source/gcf/ci_gef_gcf-esmf-version-7.pdf?sfvrsn=a788de43_4

